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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Brighton Area School District
3225 43 Street

New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statesnanthe governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregataining fund information of New Brighton Area
School District, as of and for the year ended J8e2@5, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise strict’s basic financial statements as listed in the table

of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aingpofasentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America; this

includes the design, implementation, and maintemafdnternal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of financial statements #natfree from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on th&sancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditingddads generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financiadita contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofshiéed States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablarasse about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidifievidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemetiteofinancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessmetiis auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the finanstatements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not lfer purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of acaogingiolicies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by managenasniell as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtameadfficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedts, t
respective financial position of the governmenttivities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatibthe New Brighton Area School District, as of
June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in falamasition, and where applicable, cash flows
thereof and the respective budgetary comparisorthiergeneral und for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter - Changein Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statemeiotsthe period ending June 30, 2015 the entity
adopted new accounting guidance GASB 68, AccouraindjFinancial Reporting for Pensions. The
adoption of the new guidance resulted in a prioiogeadjustment to the beginning net position. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter

Emphasis of Matter - Changein Accounting Estimate

As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statemdotsthe period ending June 30, 2015 the entity
obtained a new valuation of its fixed assets. Téhepton of the new guidance resulted in a prior
period adjustment to the beginning net positionr Guinion is not modified with respect to these
matters.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the tebhi States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, postemployment benefits other than pension be(@fEB)
information,schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of
District contributions on pages i-xi, 43, 44, 48dal6, respectively, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, aitfonot a part of the basic financial statemests, i
required by the Governmental Accounting Standardar® who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic finaicstatements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have appliedtader limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with anditstandards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiriesTanagement about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and rokmewledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express anapor provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide tis sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formiqgnions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the New Brighton Area School District’s basic financial statements. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is ptedefor purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budgetc@ar A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and as a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awardsegdsponsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accomghtand other records used to prepare the basic
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financial statements. Such information has beenestdudl to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and cersaiditional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the ung@ry accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basicnfire statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standardsrgly accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures okfatlawardss fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements a$ale.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards have also issued our report dated December
18, 2015 on our consideration of the New Brighton Area School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its comptia with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other mafieespurpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financiaporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on inter@trol over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit perfedrin accordance with Government Auditing
Standardsin considering New Brighton Area School District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Oottell, foabetine and Hosoe.

Beaver, PA 15009
December 18, 2015
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2015
Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of New Brighton Area School District
(“School District”)’s financial performance provides an overall review of the Schodbistrict’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended J@Bte 2015. The intent of this discussion and
analysis is to look at the Schabistrict’s financial performance as a whole. Readers should
also review the notes to the basic financial statemto enhance their understanding of the
SchoolDistrict’s financial performance.

The Managemery Discussion and Analysis is an element of the mappmodel adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASBheirtStatement No. 34 Basic Financial
Statements-and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments
issued June 1999. Certain comparative informdigtween the current fiscal year and the prior
fiscal year is required to be presented in the MD&A

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The SchoolDistrict’s total net position was $(20,901,875). Net position was $#3R,382) and
$(69,493) for governmental activities and busineg&gctivities, respectively.

The School Districincreased the general fund balance by $677,838 iB 206tnpared to the three
previous years:

Year Ending June 30, 2014 $(257,933)
Year Ending June 30, 2013 (84,637)
Year Ending June 30, 2012 $ 362,754

The general fund balance for the year ending JOn@®L5 is $4,296,789.

The trends of priogears’ indicated that during the fiscal ye20142015, the New Brighton Area
School District would experience another year ghiicant increases in the costs for special
education instruction, charter school tuition, dmehlth benefits for our employees. In the
budgeting process, the Board of School Directotseimsed the real estate property tax rate from
54.6 mills for 2013-2014 to 57.1457 mills in thel202015 school year.

USING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT

The SchooDistrict’s basic financial statements contain three components:
(1) Government-wide financial statements,
(2) Fund financial statements, and
(3) Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary méiron in addition to the basic financial
statementsManagement’s Discussion and Analysis provides a comparative analysis of the
SchoolDistrict’s financial position.

The first two statements are government-wide firgratatements - the statement of net position and
the statement of activities. These provide botlgiterm and short-term information about the
SchoolDistrict’s overall financial status.



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2015

The remaining statements are fund financial statésnihat focus on individual parts of the School
District’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. The governmental
fund statements tell how general School Districtises were financed in the short term as well
as what remains for future spending. Proprietamnydfstatements offer financial information
about the activities that the School District opesdike a business. For this School Districts thi
is our Food Service Fund. Fiduciary fund statesgmbvide information about financial
relationships where the School District acts soédya trustee or agent for the benefit of others,

to whom the resources in question belong. ForSminool District, this is our Student Activity
Fund.

The financial statements also include notes thalagx some of the information in the financial

statements and provide more detailed data.

Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of theraial section are arranged and relate to one

another.
FigureA-1
Required Components of
New Brighton Area School District’s
Financial Report
Management’s
Discussion
And Analysis
[ |
Basic Financial Required Supplementary
Statements Information
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of theo8khistrict’s financial statements, including the

portion of the SchdoDistrict they cover and the types of informatioreythcontain. The
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the
structure and contents of each of the statements.



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

JUNE 30, 2015

Figure A-2

Major Features of New Brighton Area School District’s
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Government-
Wide Governmental Funds| Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Statements
Scope Entire School The activities of the Activities the Instances in which
District (except | School District that are| School District the School District is
fiduciary funds) | not proprietary or operates similar to | the trustee or agent
fiduciary, such as private business | someoa else’s
education, Food Services resources- Activity
administration, and Funds
community services
Required Statement of ne{ Balance Sheet Statement of net | Statement of
financial position Statement of revenues, position fiduciary net position
statements Statement of expenditures, and
activities changes in fund Statement of Statement of change!
balances revenues, expense| in fiduciary net
and changes in position
fund net position
Statement of cash
flows
Accounting Accrual Modified accrual Accrual accounting| Accrual accounting
basis and accounting and | accounting and current| and economic and economic
measurement | economic financial resources resources focus resources focus
focus resources focus| focus
Type of All assets and | Only assets expected t| All assets and All assets and
asset/liability | liabilities, both | be used up and liabilities, both liabilities, both short-
information financial and liabilities that come dug financial and term and long-term
capital, and during the year or soon capital, and short-
short-term and | thereafter; no capital | term and long-term
long-term assets included

Type of inflow-
outflow
information

All revenues ang
expenses during
year, regardless
of when cash is
received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received during
or soon after the end of
the year; expenditures
when goods or services
have been received ani
payment is due during
the year or soon

thereafter

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

All revenues and
expenses during yea
regardless of when
cash is received or
paid




NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2015

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report informatibaua the School District as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by prigatgor companies.

The statement of net position presents information on all the School District’s assets, deferred
outflows of resourcediabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The differenceveen the
assets plus deferred outflows of resources lebdities and deferred inflows of resources is
reported as net position. Over time, increaseseoredses in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of t8ehool District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the School District’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. Allngjes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change ogctegardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reporttisistatement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (eumcollected taxes and earned but unused
compensation absences).

To assess the overall health of the School Distnich-financial factors must be considered. These
factors include changes in the Schadwktrict’s property tax base and the performance of
students.

The government-wide financial statements of theoStBistrict are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities The SchooDistrict’s basic services include instruction, support
services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupnsportation services, and
administrative services. Property and earned imctares, state and federal subsidies, and
grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities The School District operates a food service opmrat Fees
charged to staff and students as well as statdeslgnlal funding are used to cover the costs
related to the food service operations.

Fund Financial Statements

The SchooDistrict’s fund financial statements, which begin on pagerévide detailed information
about the most significant fundaot the School District as a whole. Some fundsreggired
by state law and by bond requirements.

Governmental funds Most of the SchooDistrict’s activities are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on the determination of financial piesitand change in financial position, not on
income determination. They are reported using difieol accrual accounting method. This
method measures cash and all other financial adsgtsan be readily converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailedtsbon view of the SchooDistrict’s
operations and the services the School Districtiges. Governmental fund information helps
the reader determine whether there are more offilescial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance ¢hSchool District’s instructional programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net pasiand the
statement of activities) and governmental fundgeflected in the reconciliations on pages 7 and
9.



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2015

Proprietary funds- These funds are used to account for the Schodli®iactivities that are similar
to business operations in the private sector; @ravithe reporting is on determining net income,
financial position, changes in financial positiand a significant portion of funding through user
charges. When the School District charges custorfwerservices it provideswhether to
outside customers or to other units in the Schastribt—these services are generally reported
in proprietary funds. Th#od service fund is the SchaoDistrict’s proprietary fund and is the
same as the business-type activities we repotiéngbvernment-wide statements, but provides
more detail and additional information, such ashdasws.

Fiduciary funds- The School District is the trustee, or fiducidior, activity funds. All of the School
District’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate statements of fiduciary net positionagep
13. These activities are excluded from the Sthaistrict’s other financial statements due to the
fact that the Schddistrict cannot use these assets to finance itsatipas.

FINANCIAL ANALYSISOF THE DISTRICT ASA WHOLE

The SchoolDistrict’s total net position was $(20,901,87% June 30, 2015.This is a decrease of
$30,539,919 from the prior year. The adoption of SBAStatement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, resulted in apsetsion liability of $28,014,000 not reflected
in prior years.

TableA-1
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014
Net Position
2015 2014
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals Activities Activities Totals

Current and Other Assets $ 7,776,268 91,594 $ 7,867,857 $ 9,556,765 $ 40,547 $  9,597,31:
Capital Asset 13,148,964 28,604 13,177,568 15,642,284 24,637 15,666,921

Total Assets $ 20,925,227 120,198 $ 21,045,429 $ 25,199,049 $ 65,184 $ 25,264,233
Deferred Outflows $ 2,441,184% 0 $ 2441184 $ 0% 0 $ 0
Current and Other Liabilities $ 6,402,933 189,691 $ 6,592,628 $ 5,125,423 $ 187,445 $ 5,312,86¢
Long-Term Liabilities 35,721,856 0 35,721,856 10,313,321 0 10,313,321

Total Liabilities $  42,124793% 189,691 $ 42,314,484 $ 15,438,744 $ 187,445 $ 15,626,189
Deferred Inflows $ 2,074,000 0 $ 2,074,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt $ 3,577,116 $ 28,604 $3,605,720 $ 6,309,773 $ 624, $ 6,334,41(
Restricted 1,372,099 0 1,374,099 2,962,580 0 ‘
Unrestricted (25,781,597) (98,097)  (25,879,694) 487,952 (146,898) 341,054

Total Net Position $  (20,832,382)$ (69,493)$ (20,901,879)$ 9,760,305  (122,261)$ 9,638,044




NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
JUNE 30, 2015

Due to the implementation of GASB Statement No.&®jinning in 2014-2015, the School District
was required to recognize its portion of pensiability. As a direct result of this net pension
liability, the District’s Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by $2.4 million, Deferred
Inflows of Resources increased by $2.1 million dneir net pension liabilities increased by
$29.0 million.

Current and other assets include cash and cashadeptis (money in banks and liquid investments),
net taxes receivable (fund accounting includes prbperty and earned income taxes anticipated
to be received within 60 days of the close of tisedl year, June 30), subsidies still to be
received from state and federal government, anghitories.

Buildings, land, and equipment make up most of 8ahool District's net position in the net
investment in capital assets. The above displayshhe capital assets of the School District at
cost less depreciation and does not reflect madees. The remaining net position is restricted
and unrestricted amounts. Restricted net posiitothe amounts set aside to fund future
purchases or capital projects as planned by thedbébistrict.

The results of this year’s operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities on page 5
All expenses are reported in the first column. c8jecharges, grants, revenues, and subsidies
that directly relate to specific expense categaiesrepresented to determine the final amount of
the SchoolDistrict’s activities that are supported by other general revenues. The two largest
general revenues are the basic education subsidyidpd by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania and local taxes assessed to the coityrtaxpayers of the School District.

Table A-2 takes the information from the statenwdractivities and rearranges it slightly so one can
seeour total revenues, expenses, and change to theasition for the year. Prior year
information is also provided for a comparative gia@ of government-wide data.

Table A-2
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 & 2014
Changesin Net Position

2015 2014
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 105,38% 311,456 $ 416,843 $ 91,883 $ 260,854 $ 352,737
Operating grants

and contributions 5,942,729 548,126 6,490,855 5,386,212 535,636 5,921,848
Capital grants and contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0
General revenues:
Property taxes 4,725,838 0 4,725,838 4,518,413 0 4,518,413
Other taxes 1,191,736 0 1,191,736 1,235,730 0 1,235,730
Grants, subsidies and

contributions, unrestricted 10,197,843 0 10,197,843 10,197,861 0 10,197,861
Investment earnings 6,009 0 6,009 9,741 0 9,741
Refunds of prior year receipts @) 0 (@) (6,202) 0 (6,202)
Transfers (45,635) 45,635 0 0 0 0
Total revenues $ 22123900 $ 905,217 $ 23,029,111 $ 21,433,638 $ 796,490 $ 22,230,128

Vi
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Table A-2 - Continued

2015 2014
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Expenses

Instruction (incl. Capital outlay) $ 13,262,460 0% 13,262,406 13,010,820 % 0% 13,010,82
Instructional student support 1,544,384 0 1,544,384 1,487,521 0 1,487,521
Administrative & financial support 1,559,771 0 1,559,771 1,569,585 0 1,569,585
Operation & maintenance of plant 1,981,836 0 1,981,836 2,039,360 0 2,039,360
Pupil transportation services 1,079,423 0 1,079,423 1,122,643 0 1,122,643
Other support services 354,206 0 354,206 431,875 0 431,875
Student activities 516,338 0 516,338 479,048 0 479,048
Community services 155,887 0 155,887, 167,900 0 167,900
Interest on long-term debt 273,514 0 273,514 243,620 0 243,620
Unallocated depreciation expense 453,391 0 453,391 645,447 0 645,447
Food services 0 876,803 876,803 0 847,293 847,293
Total expenses $ 21,181,210 $ 876,803 $ 22,058,013 $ 21,197,819 $ 847,293 $ 22,045,112
Incr ease (decr ease) in net position  $ 942,690 $ 28414 $ 971,104( $ 235819 $ (50,803) $ 185,016
Net Paosition - Beginning $ 9,760,305 (122,261)$ 9,638,044 $ 9,524,486 (71,458)$ 9,453,028
Prior Period Adjustment (31,535,377) 24,354 (31,511,023 0 0 0
Net Position - Beginning Restated $  (21,775,072) $ (97,907) $  (21,872,979)$ 9,524,486 $ (71,458) $ 9,453,028
Net Position - Ending $ (20,832,382)$ (69,493)$ (20,901,879)$ 9,760,305 $  (122,261)$ 9,638,044

Table A-3 shows the Schoblistrict’s largest functions: instruction, instructional student support,
administrative, operation and maintenance of plpopil transportation services, central and
other support services, student activities, comtgusgrvices, interest on long-term debt, and
unallocated depreciation expenae well as each program’s net cost (total cost less revenues
generated by the activities). This table also shtve net costs offset by the other unrestricted
grants, subsidies and contributions to show theaneimy financial needs supported by local
taxes and other miscellaneous revenues. Prioriggamation is again provided to allow for a
comparative analysis.

Table A-3
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 - Governmental Activities
Functions/Pr ogr ams Total Cost of Services  Net Cost of Services

Instruction $ 13,262,460 $ 8,664,64
Instructional student support 1,544,384 1,353,039
Administrative 1,559,771 1,397,578
Operation and Maintenance 1,981,836 1,854,794
Pupil transportation services 1,079,423 438,644
Central and other support services 354,206 332,280
Student activities 516,338 450,874
Community services 155,887 57,219
Interest on long-term debt 273,514 130,634
Unallocated depreciation expense 453,391 453,391
Total gover nmental activities $ 21,181,210 $ 15,133,094
Less: Unrestricted grants, subsidies 10,197,843
Total needs from local taxes and other revenues $ 4,935,251

Vii
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Table A-3 - Continued

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014 - Governmental Activities

Functions/Pr ogr ams

Total Cost of Services

Net Cost of Services

Instruction $ 13,010,820 $ 8,825,95
Instructional student support 1,487,521 1,321,099
Administrative 1,569,585 1,428,207
Operation and Maintenance 2,039,360 1,931,311
Pupil transportation services 1,122,643 555,934
Central and other support services 431,875 404,677
Student activities 479,048 422,035
Community services 167,900 84,388
Interest on long-term debt 243,620 100,671
Unallocated depreciation expense 645,447 645,447
Total gover nmental activities $ 21,197,819 $ 15,719,724
Less: Unrestricted grants, subsidies 10,197,861
Total needs fromlocal taxes and other revenues $ 5,521,863

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY

Table A-4 reflects the activities of the Food Seevprogram, the only Business-type activity of the

School District.

Table A-4
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2015 &
Businesstype Activities

2014

2015 2014
TOTAL COST NET COST |TOTAL COST NET COST

FUNCTIONSPROGRAMS OF SERVICE OF SERVICE | OF SERVICE OF SERVICE
Food Service $ 876,803 $ (17,221) $ 847,293 $ (50,802
Add:

Investment Earnings 0 0
Transfers 45,635 0
Total Business - type Activities $ 28,414 $ (50,803)

The statement of revenues, expenses and chan@@sdimet position for this proprietary fund will

further detail the actual results of operations.

SCHOOL DISTRICT FUNDS

The General Fund, which accounts for the ScHOBlrict’s operations, represents the School
District’s most significant major fund. All governmental funds had a fund balance of $4,358,090
as noted on page 6. The fund balatezeasedy $912,722 during the year.

viii
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General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The SchoolDistrict’s budget is prepared according to Pennsylvania law. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fur@.schedule showing the School District's originad dinal
budget amounts compared with amounts actually gaddreceived is provided qage 14.

For the General Fund, final budgeted revenue am@rotinancing sources in the amount of
$21,824,727 increased by $466,149 from the prewmas's final budget. The final budgeted
expenditures and other financing uses were $24884which was an increase of $593,169
from the previous year’s final budget. Additional revenues and the coroesiing expenditures
for grants received beyond original budget weregezed.

The generaldnd's actual results exceeded budgeted estimates by BI@L This furthemcreased
the fund balance, and the total fund balance iseréar the year was $677,838.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2015, the Schdlistrict’s governmental activities had $13,148,964 invested moad
range of capital assets, including land, site impneents, buildings, furniture, and equipment.
This amount represents a metrease of $2,493,320 or 15.94% from last year. ddwrease in
capital assets is a result of thereased capital spending over depreciation expengbe fiscal
year reduced by the fixed asset valuation adjustime®3,521,377asof June 30, 2014.

Table A-5 shows the net value of capital asseth@fjovernmental activities.

TableA-5
Governmental Activities
Capital assets— net of depreciation (if applicable)

2015 2014
Land $ 9,500 $ 261,630
Site Improvements 399,221 497,196
Buildings & Improvements 12,268,642 13,445,995
Furniture & Equipment 471,601 423,983
Construction in Progress 0 1,013,480
Total $ 13,148,964 $ 15,642,284

Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2015, the School District had totastanding bond principal of $9,633,148.

Table A-6 below depicts the Schdvistrict’s total outstanding debt by bond and lease issue.
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Table A-6
Outstanding Debt
2015 2014
General Obligation Notes/Bonds/Lease

Lease, Capital Improvement 2014 $ 2,598,148 $ 2,604,372

Bonds, Series 2011 6,160,000 7,430,000
Bonds, Series A of 2011 875,000 950,000
Total $ 9,633,148 $ 10,984,372

Other obligations include accrued and compensatechtion pay, sick leave pay, and post-
employment benefits for qualifying employees whdireefrom the School District. More
detailed information about our long-term liabilgiare included in Note 7 and 8 to the financial
statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The School District must rely on State supportdatinue funding educational programs. The local
economy only provided 28.9% of total revenue far fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. The
School District is supported by an aging populatimd a depressed local economy. One mill of
real estate taxes is approximate88%00 in revenue.

The Pennsylvania Public School Employees' Retirénsrstem (PSERS) is projecting that the
employer contribution rate will increase 25.84% for the year 2015-2016. The rate for the
2014-2015 year was 21.%0

Budget Comparison

The revenue budget for tI2015-2016 year is $981,710 more than the original budgr 2014-
2015. This represents a 4.%0increase in budgeted revenues which is due, for th& part, to
increases in real estate taxes and the Sdbialict’s state subsidies. The expenditure budget
for the 2015-2016 year is $868,901 more than theraidudget for 2014-2015, or a 3%2
increase.

Table A-7 shows the comparison of revenue and eliper categories

Table A-7
BUDGETED REVENUE

2014-2015 2015-2016
Local 29.00% 28.839
State 68.45% 68.72¢
Federal/Other 2.55% 2.45

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

2014-2015 2015-2016
Instruction 59.41% 60.83¢
Support Services 30.16% 29.4¢
Non-Instruction/Community 2.06% 1.94
Fund Transfers/Debt 8.37% 7.7¢
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CONTACTING THE DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide ouizeihs, taxpayers, parents, students, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the SchDadtrict’s finances and to show the School Board
of Directors’ accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or
wish to request additional financial informatioontact Marydenise Feroce, Business Manager,

at New Brighton Area School District, 32254Street, New Brighton, PAL5066, (724) 843-
1795 ext. 404.

Xi



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable, Net
Property Taxes
Earned Income Taxes
Internal Balances
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid Expenses
Other Receivables
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Land

Site Improvements, Net of Depreciation

Building & Building Improvements, Net of Depreciati
Furniture & Equipment, Net of Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Short-Term Payables

Current Portion of Other Extended Term Financing
Accrued Salaries & Benefits

Long Term Debt - Current

Other Post-Employment Benefits - Current

Net Pension Liability - Current

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds Payable - Long Term

Unamortized Bond Discount/Premium
Other Extended Term Financing
Other Post-Employment Benefits - Long Term
Compensated Absences- Long Term
Net Pension Liability - Long Term

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Capital Reserves
Unrestricted (Deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 5,651,533 $ 66,681 $ 5,718,21¢
826,186 0 826,186
146,843 0 146,843
3,718 (3,718) 0
1,028,165 11,011 1,039,176
17,132 0 17,132
102,686 4,843 107,529
0 12,777 12,777
$ 7,776,263 $ 91,594 $ 7,867,857
$ 9,500 $ 0o $ 9,50(
399,221 0 399,221
12,268,642 0 12,268,642
471,601 28,604 500,205
$ 13,148,964 $ 28,604 $ 13,177,568
$ 20,925,227 $ 120,198 $ 21,045,425
$ 2,441,184 $ 0 $ 2,441,184
$ 2,441,184 $ 0 $ 2,441,184
$ 430,674 $ 189,691 $ 620,365
72,000 0 72,000
,808 0 108,807
2,273,154 0 2,273,154
1,380,000 0 1,380,000
126,118 0 126,118
2,012,184 0 2,012,184
$ 6,402,937 $ 189,691 $ 6,592,628
$ 5,655,000 $ 0 $ 5,655,00
58,026 0 58,026
2,489,341 0 2,489,341
342,573 0 342,573
176,100 0 176,100
27,000,816 0 27,000,816
$ 35,721,856 $ 0 $ 35,721,856
$ 42,124,793 $ 189,691 $ 42,314,484
$ 2,074,000 $ 0 $ 2,074,000
$ 2,074,000 $ 0 $ 2,074,000
$ 3,577,116 $ 28,604 $ 3,605,72(
61,301 0 61,301
1,310,798 0 1,310,798
(25,781,597) (98,097) (25,879,694
$ (20,832,382) $ (69,493) $ (20,901,875

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changesin Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grantsand Grantsand Gover nmental Business-type
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Gover nmental Activities:
Instruction:
Regular Instruction $ 9,565,968 $ 0 $ 2,662,167 $ 0 $ (6,903,801) $ 0 $ (6,903,80:
Special Instruction 2,649,534 0 1,831,386 0 (818,148) 0 (818,148)
Vocational Instruction 754,941 0 81,070 0 (673,871) 0 (673,871)
Other Instructional Programs 292,017 0 23,196 0 (268,821) 0 (268,821)
Total Instructional Services $ 13,262,460 $ 0 $ 4,597,819 $ 0 $ (8,664,641) $ 0 $ (8,664,641
Support Services:
Pupil Personnel $ 741,390 $ 0 $ 79,847 $ 0 $ (661,543) $ 0 $ (661,54!
Instructional Staff 534,285 0 53,800 0 (480,485) 0 (480,485)
Administration 1,291,466 0 132,618 0 (1,158,848) 0 (1,158,848,
Pupil Health 268,709 0 57,698 0 (211,011) 0 (211,011)
Business Services 268,305 0 29,575 0 (238,730) 0 (238,730)
Operation of Plant and Maintenance Services 1,981,83 0 127,042 0 (1,854,794) 0 (1,854,794
Student Transportation Services 1,079,423 0 640,779 0 (438,644) 0 (438,644)
Central and Other Support Services 354,206 0 21,926 0 (332,280) 0 (332,280)
Total Support Services $ 6,519,620 $ 0 $ 1,143,285 $ 0 $ (5,376,335) $ 0 $ (5,376,335
Non-Instructional Services:
Student Activities $ 516,338 $ 16,750 $ 48,714 $ 0 $ (450,874) $ 0 $ (450,87
Community Services 155,887 88,637 10,031 0 (57,219) 0 (57,219)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 273,514 0 142,880 0 (130,634) 0 (130,634)
Capital Outlay (Not Subject to Capitalization) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unallocated Depreciation Expense 453,391 0 0 0 (453,391) 0 (453,391)
Total Non-Instructional Services $ 1,399,130 $ 105,387 $ 201,625 $ 0 $ (1,092,118) $ 0 $ (1,092,118
Total Gover nmental Activities $ 21,181,210 $ 105,387 $ 5942729 $ 0 $ (15,133,094) $ 0 $ (15,133,09
Business-type Activities:
Food Services 876,803 311,456 548,126 0 (17,221) (17,221)
Total Primary Gover nment $ 22,058,013 $ 416,843 $ 6,490,855 $ $ (15,133,094) $ (17,221)  $ (15,150,315
General Revenues:
Property taxes, Levied for General Purposes, Ne! $ 4,725,838 $ 0 $ 4,725,883
Other Taxes Levied for General Purposes, Net 1,B®1,7 0 1,191,736
Grants, Subsidies & Contributions Not Restricted 10,197,843 0 10,197,843
Interest Earnings 6,009 0 6,009
Refunds of Prior Year Receipt ) 0 )
Transfers (45,635) 45,635 0
Total General Revenues and Transfers $ 16,075,784 $ 45,635 $ 16,121,419
Changein Net Position $ 942,690 28,414 $ 971,104
Net Position - Beginning of Y ear $ 9,760,305 $ (122,261) $ 9,638,044
Prior Period Adjustment - Changein Accounting Estimate (Note 13) (3,521,377) 24,354 (3,497,023
Prior Period Adjustment - Change in Accounting Principle (Note 13) (28,014,000) 0 (28,014,000
Net Position - Beginning of Year - Restated $ (21,775,072) $ (97,907)  $ (21,872,979
Net Position - End of Y ear $(20,832,382) $  (69,493) $ (20,901,875

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements




NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

Total
Capital Governmental
General Project Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,568,081 $ 83,452 $ 5,651,53¢
Taxes Receivable:
Property Taxes 826,186 0 826,18
Earned Income Taxes 146,843 0 146,84.
Interfund Receivables 866,114 0 866,11:
Intergovernmental Receivables 1,028,165 0 1,028,16
Other Receivables 102,686 0 102,68!
Prepaid Expenditures 17,132 0 17,132
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,555,207 $ 83,452 $ 8,638,659
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 408,523 $ 0 $ 408,52
Contracts Payable (Including Retainage) 0 22,151 22,151
Interfund Payables 862,396 0 862,391
Accrued Salaries & Benefits 2,273,154 0 2,273,154
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 3,544,073 $ 22,151 $ 3,566,224
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes $ 714,345 $ 0 $ 714,345
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 714,345 $ 0 $ 714,345
FUND BALANCES
Non-Spendable:
Prepaid Expenditures $ 17,132 $ 0 $ 17,13:
Restricted for:
Capital Project 0 61,301 61,301
Committed for:
Capital Project 250,000 0 250,001
Capital Reserves 1,310,798 0 1,310,79
Assigned for:
PSERS 700,000 0 700,001
Next Year's Appropriation 227,053 0 227,05:
Unassigned 1,791,806 0 1,791,806
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 4,296,789 $ 61,301 $ 4,358,090
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWSOF
RESOURCESAND FUND BALANCES $ 8,555,207 $ 83,452 $ 8,638,659

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSBALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

TOTAL FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 4,358,090

Amounts reported fogovernmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities that arénaocial
and therefore are not reported as assets in governmemdal f
Add: Capital Assets 33,291,98

Deduct: Accumulated Depreciation (20,143,0

Certain tax revenues are recognized in the periodfiech levied
than when "available." A portion of the certairfedeed tax revenues
are not available.
Add: Property Taxes 714,34

Some liabilities, including net pension obligations, rmwedue and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not rgggbin governmental funds

Deduct: Net Pension Liability (29,013,0C

Deferred outflows and inflows or resources relatedetosppns are applicable
to future periods and, therefore, are not repomegbvernmental funds

Add: Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pession$ 2,441,184

Deduct: Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Bessi (2,074,000)
367,184
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are do¢ and payable
in the current period, and therefore are not regubas liabilities in
the funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:
Deduct: Bonds Payable $  (7,035,000)
Deduct: Unamortized Bond Discount/Premium (58,026)
Deduct: Other Extended Term Financing (2,598,148)
Deduct: Accrued Interest on Debt (72,000)
Deduct: Compensated Absences and Other Post-EmploymenttBenef (644,791)
(10,407,965
TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $(20,832,382

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Instruction

Support Services
Non-Instructional Services
Capital Outlay

Debt Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refund of Prior Year Receipts
Interfund Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES- BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES- END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Total
Capital Governmental
General Proj ect Funds
6,406,316 $ 332 $ 6,406,64
14,992,124 0 14,992,124
808,509 0 808,509
22,206,949 $ 332 $ 22,207,281
12,701,452 % 0 $ 12,701,45
6,288,476 0 6,288,476
659,273 0 659,273
175,694 1,590,892 1,766,586
1,658,574 0 1,658,574
21,483,469 $ 1,590,892 $ 23,074,361
723,480 $ (1,590,560) $ (867,080)
7 % 0 $ (7
(45,635) 0 (45,635)
(45,642) $ 0 $ (45,642)
677,838 $ (1,590,560) $ (912,722
3,618,951 1,651,861 5,270,812
4,296,789 % 61,301 $ 4,358,090




NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
NET CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ (912,722)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities are different becaus

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation
in the period.
Capital Outlays $ 1,766,585
Less: Depreciation Expense (738,529)

1,028,056
Because some property and earned income taxes will not be collected for
several months after the District's fiscal year ends, they are not
considered as "available" revenues in the governmental funds. Deferred
tax revenues decreased by this amount this year. (37,737)

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expesslitu
However in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefitecarn
net of employee contributions is reported as pension expense

District Pension Contributions $ 2,012,184
Less: Cost of Benefits Earned Net of Employee Contributions 6442000)

(631,816)

The governmental funds report proceeds from debt as an otherriganci
source, while the repayment of debt principal is reported as an expendi
Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs aniuprem
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and @mortize
in the Statement of Activities. Interest is recognized as an expenditine i
governmental funds when it is due. In the Statement of Activitiesefst
expense is recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it i lde@et

effect of these differences in the treatment of bonds and leasdslis\as:

Repayment of Bond Principal $ 1,345,001

Other Extended Term Financing 6,224

Interest Expense 33,836

Amortization of Bond Discount/Premium 14,054

1,399,115

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses-compensated

absences and other post-employment benefits-are measured by the amounts

earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,dittpes

for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used

(essentially, the amounts actually paid). During this year, theatotalint

of the liability decreased by this amount. 97,794

CHANGE IN NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 942,690

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Intergovernmental Receivables
Other Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Machinery & Equipment, Net of Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds

Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Food Service

$ 66,681
11,011
4,843
12,777

$ 95312

$ 28,604
28,604

$ 123,916

$ 3,718
189,691

$ 193409

0
0

$ 193409

$ 28,604
(98,097)

$  (69,493)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES:
Food Service Revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Purchased Professional and Technical Service
Supplies

Depreciation

Equipment

Other Operating Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

State Sources
Federal Sources

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS
Operating Transfers In (Out)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE (NOTE 13)

TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR - RESTATED

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Food Service
$ 311,456
$ 311,456
$ 798,349
56,150
20,387
1,000

917

$ 876,803
$ (565,347)
$ 28,092
520,034

$ 548,126
$ (17,221)
45,635

$ 28,414
$ (122,261)
24,354

$ (97,907)
$ (69,493)



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Food Service
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Users $ 308,582
Cash Payments for Purchased Professional and Technical Services (796,103)
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (48,369)
Cash Payments for Other Operating Expenses (917)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (536,807)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources $ 31,573
Transfers Received 45,635
Federal Sources 501,514
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 578,722
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets $ 0
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ 0
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 41,915
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- BEGINNING OF YEAR 24,766
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- END OF YEAR $ 66,681
Reconciliation of Operating Income (L 0ss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Oper ating Income (L 0ss) $ (565,347)
Depreciation $ 20,387
Changein Assetsand Liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (2,874)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories 8,781
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 2,246
Total Adjustments $ 28,540
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (536,807)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL NET POSITION

Student
Activities

Fund

$ 78,0
$ 78,020

$ 78,0z
$ 78,020
$ 0

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES

Local Revenues

State Program Revenues
Federal Program Revenues

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Regular Programs

Special Programs

Vocational Programs

Other Instructional Programs

Pupil Personnel Services

Instructional Staff Services

Administrative Services

Pupil Health

Business Services

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services
Student Transportation Services

Central & Other Support Services

Student Activities

Community Services

Facilities Acquisition and Construction
Debt Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refund of Prior Year Receipts
Budgetary Reserve

Interfund Transfers

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net Change in Fund Balances
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variancewith

Final Budget Actual
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive Amounts
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) GAAP Basis

6,330,091 $ 6,330,091 $ 6,406,316 $ 76,225 0o s 6,406,31
14,938,106 14,938,106 14,992,124 54,018 0 14,992,124
556,530 556,530 808,509 251,979 0 808,509
21,824,727 $ 21,824,727 $ 22,206,949 $ 382,222 0 $ 22,206,949
9,279,007 $ 9,279,007 $ 9,142,520 $ 136,487 0o 3 9,142,52
2,559,756 2,559,756 2,572,605 (12,849) 0 2,572,605
1,050,414 1,050,414 699,870 350,544 0 699,870
278,557 278,557 286,457 (7,900) 0 286,457
745,591 745,591 710,662 34,929 0 710,662
505,902 505,902 489,657 16,245 0 489,657
1,284,411 1,284,411 1,244,937 39,474 0 1,244,937
248,545 248,545 255,558 (7,013) 0 255,558
274,191 274,191 255,247 18,944 0 255,247
2,064,133 2,064,133 1,928,034 136,099 0 1,928,034
1,160,403 1,160,403 1,079,423 80,980 0 1,079,423
401,069 401,069 324,958 76,111 0 324,958
338,323 338,323 506,545 (168,222) 0 506,545
118,509 118,509 152,728 (34,219) 0 152,728

0 0 175,694 (175,694) 0 175,694
1,545,265 1,545,265 1,658,574 (113,309) 0 1,658,574
21,854,076 $ 21,854,076 $ 21,483,469 $ 370,607 0 $ 21,483,469
(29,349) % (29,349) % 723,480 $ 752,829 0 $ 723,480
0 $ 0o $ @7 % (7) $ G

(60,126) (60,126) 0 60,126 0 0
(250,387) (250,387) (45,635) 204,752 0 (45,635)
(310,513) $ (310,513) $ (45,642) $ 264,871 0 $ (45,642)
(339,862) $ (339,862) $ 677,838 $ 1,017,700 0 $ 677,83
2,099,255 2,099,255 3,618,951 1,519,696 0 3,618,951
1,759,393 $ 1,759,393 $ 4,296,789 $ 2,537,396 $ 4,296,789

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 1- REPORTING ENTITY

The New Brighton Area School District'School District”) is organized under Title 24 of the
Pennsylvania Statutes. The School District pravidéucational services as authorized by state
statute and/or federal guidelines.

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary goveent, component units, and other organizations
that are included to insure that the financialesteints of the School District are not misleading.
The primary government consists of all funds, depants, boards, and agencies that are not
legally separate from the School District. For tdew Brighton Area School District, this
includes general operations, food service, andestiugtlated activities of the School District.

Component units are legally separate organizatfonswhich the School District is financially
accountable. The School District is financiallycagntable for an organization if the School
District appoints a voting majoritgf the organization’s governing board and (1) the School
District is able to significantly influence the gmams or services performed or provided by the
organization; or (2) the School District is legakgntitled to or can otherwise access the
organizaion’s resources; the School District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits of, or prdeifinancial support to the organization; or the
School District is obligated for the debt of thgamization. Component units may also include
organizations that are fiscally dependent on thkoS8ic District in that the School District
approves the budget, the issuance of debt, orelhgnlg of taxes. The New Brighton Area
School District does not have any component units.

The Beaver Valley Intermediate Unit and Beaver @pu@areer and Technology Center were
considered as possible component units, but warledsd based on the above criteria.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the New Brighton AreAdl District have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted i thnited States of America (GAAP) as applied
to local government units. The Governmental ActiognStandards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishingigowental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The School District also applies Financial AccongtiStandards Board (FASB)
statements and interpretations issued on or bédorember 30, 1989 to its governmental and
business-type activities and to its proprietarydsnprovided they do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncementsThe more significant accounting policies of the @ih
District are described below.

A. Basisof Presentation

The School District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net position and a statement of &iesviand fund financial statements, which
provide a more detailed level of financial inforinat

Government-wide financial statement$he statement of net position and the statemeatifities
display information about the School District aglagole. These statements include the financial
activities of the primary government, except faluitiary funds. The statements distinguish
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between those activities of the School Distriet tre governmental and those that are considered
business-type activitiesAs a general rule, the effect of interfund activitss been eliminated
from the government-wide financial statements.

The statement of net position presents the finhoiadition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the School District at year-end. Tétatement of activities presents a comparison
between direct expenses and program revenues &r magram or function of the SchHoo
District’s governmental and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those tha ar
specifically associated with a service, programdepartment and, therefore, clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program revenues incloldarges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, grants, and dmttdns that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particplaxgram and interest earned on grants that is
required to be used to support a particular progr&avenues that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues ofhibel ®istrict, with certain limited exceptions.
The comparison of direct expenses with programmaee identifies the extent to which each
business activity or governmental function is $eléncing or draws from the general revenues of
the School District.

Fund financial statementsDuring the year, the School District segregatesstations related to
certain School District functions or activities separate funds in order to aid financial
management and to demonstrate legal compliancend Fnancial statements are designed to
present financial information of the School Didtrat this more detailed level. The focus of
governmental and proprietary fund financial statetmés on major funds. Each major fund is
presented in a separate column. Non-major fufidgplicable, are aggregated and presented in
a single column. The fiduciary funds are repoligdype.

B. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain itsfiicial records during the year. A fund is defined a
a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balagcset of accounts. There are three categories of
funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental fund financial statements are reponesthg the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual base&eaofunting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and availableendes are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period oos enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the School Qistronsiders revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the currietal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as underraalc accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related ngpensated aerces, early retirement, arbitrage
rebates, and post-employment healthcare benefiés,rexorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes and interest associated with pabtcarrent fiscal periods are considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recoga&eevenues of the current fiscal period if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the enirfiscal period. All other property taxes

16



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

associated with past and current fiscal periogsdaferred in the Governmental fund financial
statements.

The School District reports the following major gowmental funds:

The General Fund is the operating fund of the Sklstrict and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to bewsted for in another fund.

The School District reports the following non-magmvernmental fund because it does not meet the
major fund criteria:

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for resourcesinaglated and payments made for the
acquisition and improvement of sites, constructiad remodel of facilities, and procurement of
equipment necessary for providing educational @ogr for all students within the School
District.

Proprietay funds may be used to account for any activity forol a fee is charged to external users
for goods or services. Proprietary funds are autsmlifor on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilitissociated with the operation of these funds are
included on the statement of net position. Theestant of revenues, expenses, and changes in
fund net position presents increases (i.e., rev@nard decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total
assets. Operating revenues, such as charges riacese result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the funBxchange transactions are those in which each
party receives and gives up essentially equal saluéon-operating revenues, such as subsidies
and investment earnings, result from non-exchamgesactions or ancillary activities. The
statement of cash flows provides information aldeaw the School District finances and meets
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. pidbprietary funds are shown on the government-
wide statements as business type activities.

The School District reports the following major prietary funds:
Food Service Fund accounts for the financial tretnsas related to the food service operations.
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assetshhettie School District in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, obher governments. These include agency
funds. Agency funds are purely custodial and thasndt involve measurement of results of

operations. Accordingly, the School District prseonly a statement of fiduciary net position
and does not present a statement of changes iridigunet position for the agency fund.

The School District reports the following FiduciaRunds, which are not subject to major fund
reporting:
Student Activities Funds are agency funds thauaesl to account for net position held in a purely
custodial capacity for specific other persons gaoizations or governments.

The government-wide financial statements are regousing the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, asharproprietary fund financial statements.
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Revenues are recorded when earned, and experesescarded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flowsoperty taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and simtims are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the providevédeen met.

C. Budgetary Process

The School District passed an appropriated budgethe fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 with
revenues totaling $21,824,727 and expenditurerigtd22,164,589. The budget was balanced
with the prior year fund balance.

The School District is required by state law to @tdan annual budget for the General Fund only
The budget is presented on the modified accruak lmsaccounting, which is consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The state does not require any other funds
to have an annual budget adopted; therefore, ngetady comparisons schedules are shown
except for the General Fund.

The following procedures are followed in establighthe budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

Preliminary BudgetThe preliminary budget for each year must be adbftia Board vote) 90 days
prior to the Primary Election, unless the Schodtiit adopts a Resolution indicating that it will
not raise the rate of any tax by more than itsxnd€he Resolution must be adopted 110 days
prior to the Primary Election and the School Dgtinust adopt a Resolution that follows
traditional budget guidelines.

A proposedversion must be prepared at least 20 days befangtiad; this workin-progress budget,
defined as the proposed preliminary budget, musinbde available for public inspection no
later than 110 days prior to the Primary Electi®ublic notice of the intent to adopt the
preliminary budget must be published no later thGrdays before adoption of the preliminary
budget (100 days before Primary Election).

Final Budget:The final budget for each year must be adopted Baard vote) by June 30 of the
preceding school fiscal year.

A proposedversion must be prepared and adopted (via Board) vai later than May 30 of the
preceding school fiscal year (at least 30 days reefmloption); this worka-progress budget,
defined as the proposed final budget, must be ragdiable for public inspection no later than
June 10 of the preceding school fiscal year (2 dfore adoption on June 30). Public notice
of the intent to adopt the final budget must beligbbd no later than June 20 of the preceding
school fiscal year (10 days before adoption on e

Note: For the adopted preliminary budget to becangeproposed final budget, the school board
must take action.

Once the budget is approved, it can be amendde &unction and Fund level only by approval of a
majority of the members of the Board of Directofsnendments are presented to the Board at
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their regular meetings. Each amendment must Baged approval. Such amendments are made
before the fact, are reflected in the official niesiof the Board, and are not made after fiscal
year-end as dictated by law.

Each budget is prepared and controlled by the hucigerdinator at the revenue and expenditure
function/object level. Budgeted amounts are asnaie@ by the Board of Directors. All budget
appropriations lapse at year-end, unless the Scbagitict chooses to utilize encumbrance
accounting. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase ordetscantracts) outstanding at year end are
reported as reservations of fund balances and toomstitute expenditures or liabilities because
the commitments will be re-appropriated and honal&thg the subsequent year.

D. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The SchooDistrict’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturitafsthree months or less from the date of
acquisition, including investments in the Pennsyl@alocal Government Investment Trust
(PLGIT) and Pennsylvania School District Liquid As§und (PSDLAF).

The School District’s general policy is to report money market investments and short-term
participating interest-earning investment contracié amortized cost and to report
nonparticipating interest-earning investment cangraising a cost-based measure. However, if
the fair value of an investment is significantlyeated by the impairment of the credit standing
of the issuer or by other factors, it is reporteaa value. All other investments are reportéd a
fair value unless a legal contract existhjch guarantees a higher value. The term “short-term”
refers to investments, which have a remaining tefrone year or less at the time of purchase.
The term “nonparticipating” means that the investment’s value does not vary with market interest
rate changes.

E. Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and gagaiesulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” These amounts are offset against each other in the
governmental and business-type activities colunfrth® statement of net position, except for
amounts due to/from other funds, which are notetesl in the statement of net position.

F. Inventories

On government-wide statements, inventories areedstat cost using the purchase method. The
purchase method means that food products, matesiads supplies are charged as expenditures
when acquired. Inventory on hand at the end of/éa& is then recorded as an asset by offsetting
the appropriate expense account. Inventory for gowental activitiess not reported as of June
30, 2015 due tdats immaterial balance.The inventory for business-type activities at JGfe
2015is $12,777.
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On fund financial statements, inventories are dtatecost using the purchase method for proprietary
funds. Inventories are not maintained in goverrtalefunds for fund financial statement
reporting.

G. Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not splgifielated to activities reported in the profaig
funds. These assets generally result from expaneditin the governmental funds. These assets
are reported in the governmental activities coluninthe government-wide statement of net
position but are not reported in the fund finangttements. Capital assets utilized by the
proprietary funds are reported both in the bushtgss activities column of the government-wide
statement of net posith and in the respective funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (omesstied historical cost) and updated for additiors$ an
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assetsecorded at their fair market values as of the
date received. The School District maintains dtabpation threshold of $1,500. Improvements
are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenancerapairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets except land and cocistiu in progress are depreciated. Improvements
are depreciated over the remaining useful liveshef related capital assets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight line method over thieviang useful lives:

Governmental Business-Tyj
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives  Estimated Li
Site Improvements 15-20 years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 20-50 years N/A
Furniture and Equipment 3-20 years 10-15 yese

New Brighton Area School District has elected wotdpitalize the portion of the building used by
the cafeteria on the proprietary fund. The ertiréding cost is shown under Governmental
Activities on the statement of net position.

H. Compensated Absences/Retirement Incentives

According to School District employee contract® $tthool District has agreed to pay® for each
year of service with the School District. This eéntive is available to anyone who has
accunulated a minimum of fifteen years of service. Tiability, amounting to $176,10Gn
increase of $3,2Q0s recorded in the Governmental Activities statenahnet position and is
based on the accumulated years of service of Eigimployees as of June 30, 2015.
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The School District has agreed to pay hospitatiratnsurance premiums and/or a cash bonus for
certain individuals who have previously acceptedyeeetirement. The School District has
chosen to measure and recognize an “other post-employment benefit” (OPEB) liability in the
amount of $468,691 and has done so in accordartheravisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, Accourdind Financial Reporting by Employers
for Post-Employment Benefits Other than PensioriBhis statement provides guidance on
accouming and financial reporting for “other post-employment benefits” accounted for in
financial statements of plan sponsors and employgd$EB refers to non-pension benefits
provided after the termination of employment. @mrample of this type of benefit is healthcare
insurance premiums paid by employers on behalbohér employees. Governmental entities
have traditionally accounted for OPEB on a jpayou-go basis. The guidance in this statement
rests on the assumption that OPEB should be acamseservice is provided by employees.
More information on these liabilities is includedelain these notes.

The liabilities for the above items are reportedtio& government-wide financial statements. For
governmental funds, the current portion of theiligds is the amount that is normally expected
to be paid using expendable financial resourcesproprietary funds, if applicable, the entire
amount of the liabilities is reported as a fundility.

I. Accrued Liabilitiesand Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-termligditions are reported in the government-wide
financial statements; and all payables, accruddilitias, and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietandffinancial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and acdrabitities that, once incurred, are paid in a tiye
manner and in full from current financial resoureee reported as obligations of the funds.
However, claims and judgments, compensated absespesial termination benefits, and
contractually required pension contributions thall Wwe paid from governmental funds are
reported as a liability in the fund financial staents only to the extent that they are due for
payment in the current year. Bonds and capitaieleaare recognized as a liability on the
governmental fund financial statements when due.

J. Net Position

Net position represents the difference betweentsassed deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Matestment in capital assets consists of cost of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciaticsicedl by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition, constructionmprovement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitatiomgosed on its use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the School District or tigbiexternal restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governisienAll other net position is reported as
unrestricted.
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The School District applies restricted resourcest fivhen an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net positsoavailable.

K. Fund Balance

The GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance filegoand Governmental Fund Type
Definitions (GASB54), is effective for reporting periods after June 15, 20T he intention of
the GASB Statement is to provide a more structwiledsification of fund balance and to
improve the usefulness of fund balance reportinthéousers of the School Districtinancial
statements. The reporting standard establishesar¢hy for fund balance classifications and the
constraints imposed on the uses of those resources.

GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund baksicnon-spendable and spendable. Non-
spendable fund balances are balances that canrapidn¢ because they are not expected to be
converted to cash or they are legally or contrdigtwaquired to remain intact. Examples of this
classification are prepaid items and inventories.

In addition to the non-spendable fund balance, GA8Bas provided a hierarchy of spendable fund
balances, based on a hierarchy of spending comtstrai

Restricted— Fund balances that are constrained by externdlepaiconstitutional provisions, or
enabling legislation.

Committed- Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraithe government from its highest
level of decision making authority, the Board ofrdaitors through board action to commit
funds.

Assigned- Fund balances that contain self-imposed constraihthe government to be used for a
particular purpose. The Board of Directors haggithe business manager authorization to
assign portions of the fund balance.

Unassigned Fund balance of the general fund that is not caimgtd for any particular purpose.

The School District considers the use of fundshe order of the most restrictive to the least
restrictive based on the fund balance hierarchy.

According to the School District policy, the Schdaistrict will strive to maintain an unassigned
general fund balance of not less than six percathtn@t more than eight percent of the budgeted
expenditures for the fiscal year.

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféyraiith generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assaskiat affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingessets and liabilities at the date of the findncia
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxpehses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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M. Bond Discount and Premium

Bond discounts and premiums are deferred and adcoeter the term of the bonds. Bond discounts
and premiums are presented as a reduction or additithe face amount of the bonds.

N. Deferred Outflows/| nflows of Resour ces

In addition to assets, the statement of net poséiwd/or balance sheet includes a separate séotion
deferred outflows of resources. This separatenfifzh statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net posfiairapplies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (esqderpenditure) until then. The School
District reported $2,441,184 in the Governmentatiiiies as deferred outflows of resources
related to pension.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of nesjiimn and/or the balance sheet will sometimesntegpo
separate section for deferred inflows of resourcé@is separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an aitigniof net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an wftd resources (revenue) until that time. The
School District reported $2,074,000 in the Govemtale Activities as deferred inflows of
resources related to pension. The School Disaisd had $714,345 of deferred inflow of
resources from unavailable property tax revenuerteg on the balance sheet as of June 30,
2015

O. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabitigferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and parsipense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) and additions
to/deductions from PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by PSERS. For this purpose fiv@agments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payableaccordance with benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

P. Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronounctmen

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financialdrépg for Pensions, establishes standards of
accounting and financial reporting for defined Baneensions and defined contribution pensions
provided to the employees of state and local gawemnal employers through pension plans that
are administered through trusts or equivalent gearents in which:

¢ Contributions from employers and nonemployer cboting entities to the pension plan
and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable
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¢ Pension plan assets are dedicated to providinggrent plan members in accordance
with the benefit terms.

e Pension plan assets are legally protected fronarébditors of employers, nonemployer
contributing entities, and the pension plan adraier. If the plan is a defined benefit
pension plan, plan assets also are legally pratéoden creditors of the plan members.

NOTE 3- CASH /INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the evehi bank failure, the School Districtdeposits may

not be returned to it. As of June 315 $132,319 of the School Digit’s bank balance of
$833,393 was exposed to custodial credit risk as:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 0
Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutiod
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's trust department

not in the School District's name $ 132,319

Other Deposits

As of June 302015 the School District had the following other deipog the Pennsylvania School

District Liquid Asset Fund (PSDLAF) and the Penmayia Local Government Investment Trust
(PLGIT), which were established as common law $ustrganized under laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Shares of the famedffered to certain Pennsylvania school
districts, intermediate units, area vocatioteghnical schools and municipalities. The purpose of
the funds is to enable such governmental unitsaol pheir available funds for investments
authorized by Section 440.1 of the Pennsylvanidi®@chool Code of 1949 as amended. These
funds have the characteristics of open-end mutuatld and are not subject to credit risk
classification. PSDLAF and PLGIT are governed duy elected board of trustees who are
responsible for the overall management of theme fiiistees are elected from the severabelas
of local governments participating in them. Eadnd is audited annually by independent
auditors. The Funds operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2(a)7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940. The funds use amortized twseport Net Position to compute share
prices. The Funds maintain a net asset value gfe8khare. Accordingly, the fair value of the
position in PSDLAF and PLGIT is the same as theiwaf PSDLAF and PLGIT shares. The
value of the funds as of June 2015is as follows:

Type Fair Value
PA Local Government Investment Trust $ 529,446
PA School District Liquid Asset Fund 4,578,867

Total $ 5,108,313

24



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

NOTE 3- CASH /INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Reconciliation to Financial Statements

Uncollateralized Amount Above $ 132,31
Collateralized Amount Above 701,07
Other Deposits (Above) 5,108,31
Carrying Amount - Bank Balances $ 5,941,7
Add: Petty Cash 25(
Less: Outstanding Items (145,7.
Less: Fiduciary Funds (78,02
Total $ 5,718,214

Credit Risk

The School District has no investment policy thauid limit its investment choices to certain credit
ratings. As of June 3@015 the SchooDistrict’s investments were rated as:

Type Standard & Poor’
PA Local Government Investment Trust AAAM
PA School District Liquid Asset Fund AAAM

Interest Rate Risk

The School District does not have a formal invesinpmlicy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value loagsimg from increasing interest rates.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is thé& tisat, in the event of the failure of the counsety,
the School District will not be able to recover traue of its investments or collateral security
that are in the possession of an outside partye Sd¢hool District has no investment subject to
custodial credit risk.

Statutory Authority

School Districts are to adopt local investmentges. The local investment policy must be written;
primarily emphasize the safety of principal andidity; and address investment diversification,
yield, maturity, and the quality and capabilityinfestment management. Each School District
should customize its policies to meet board andimidtrative objectives as defined. School
Districts should review their investment policieglanvestment strategies annually.

Section 440.1(c) of the Pennsylvania School Codeoaizes the types of investments school districts
may have:

¢ United States Treasury bills

¢ Short-term obligations of the United States Govesntror its agencies or instrumentalities.
(Short-term obligations usually refer to investnsenit less than 13 months)
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¢ Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits aesaccounts of institutions insured by:

o The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FD&C);

o The Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation;

o The National Credit Union Share Insurance Fundhéoeixtent that such accounts are
so insured, and for any amounts above maximumi,igedwthat approved collateral
as provided by law therefore shall be pledged bydipository

e Obligations of the United States of America or afiyts agencies or instrumentalities backed
by the full faith and credit of the United Statef America, the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumgiesl Full faith and credit means the
obligation is backed by the government’s ability to levy taxes to repay debt. These
investments include any bonds issued by the Comrealtliv of Pennsylvania or any
municipality or school district carrying the baadinof the taxation powers of ¢h
governmental unit issuing the debt. Some investmehthe Federal government do not have
full faith and credit backing. Fannie-Mae (FNMA) aRceddy-Mach (FNMC) bonds do not.
Ginnie-Mae (GNMA) bonds do have full faith and crdshicking

e Shares of an investment company registered undednestment Company Act of 1940
whose shares are registered under the SecurittesfA®33, provided that the following are
met:

o Only investments of that company are in the auteoriinvestments for school
district funds listed in the categories above, amrgurchase agreements fully
collateralized by such investments

o The investment company is managed so as to maiittaghares as a constant net
asset value in accordance with 17 CFR 270 2a-&tifnglto money market funds)

o The investment company is rated in the highestgoayeby a nationally recognized
rating agency. This classification includes pooleestments such as the
Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund, mssfvania Local Government
Investment Trusiand the Pennsylvania State Treasurer’s Invest Program

NOTE 4 - TAXES

Property Taxes

Based upon assessed valuations provided by thetg;dlnea municipal tax collector bills and collects
property taxes on behalf of the School District.

The schedule for property taxes levied 200142015is as follows:

July 1,2014 - tax levy date
Through August 312014 - 2% discount period
Through October 32014 - face payment period
Beginning November,2014 - 5% penalty period
39 Monday in April, 2015 - lien date

The School District tax rate for all purpose2i42015was 57.1457 mills ($57.1457 per $1,000
assessed valuatiorQollections for the20142015year were$4,331,583.
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As of June 30, 2015, property taxes receivablehgy School District includes uncollected taxes
assessed as of July 2014 or earlier. It is estimated that 90% of all aseédstaxes (including
delinquencies plus accrued interest and penaltids)oe collected; therefore, property taxes
receivable reflect this estimate. Delinquent propeax receivable is recognized as revenue in
the government-wide financial statements. Only pibetion of property taxes receivable that
meets the revenue recognition criteria is repaaedevenue in the fund financial statements.

Income Taxes

The School District levies a voted continuing tdx0c6% for general operations on the income of
residents. Taxpayers are required to file an dnretarn. The collector makes periodic
contributions to the School District after withhiolg amounts for administrative fees. Income
tax receipts are credited to the general fund.

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June&2B@5 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 9,500 $ (U 0% 9,50(
Construction in Progress 1,013,480 0 (1,013,480) 0
Total Capital assets, not being depreciated $ 1,022,980 0 $ (1,013,480)% 9,500
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Site Improvements $ 1,785,445 $ 103,736 $ 0$% 1,889,18
Building and Building Improvements 25,709,468 2,672,532 0 28,382,000
Furniture and Equipment 3,007,503 3,797 0 3,011,300
Total capital assets, being depreciated $ 30,502,416 2,780,065 $ 0 $ 33,282,481
Accumulated Depreciation for:
Site Improvements $ (1,436,433)% (53,527)$ 0$% (1,489,96!
Building and Building Improvements (15,655,520)  (457,838) 0 (16,113,358
Furniture and Equipment (2,312,535) (227,164) 0 (2,539,699
Total accumulated depreciation $ (19,404,488) (738,529) $ 0 $ (20,143,017
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 11,097,928 2,041,536 $ 0 $ 13,139,464
Governmental activities capital assets, net: $ 12,120,998 2,041,536 $ (1,013,480)$% 13,148,964
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NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Building and Building Improvements $ 05 0% 0% 0
Furniture and Equipment 526,690 0 0 526,690
Total capital assets, being depreciated $ 526,800 0 $ 0 $ 526,690
Accumulated depreciation for:
Building and Building Improvements $ 05 0% 0% 0
Furniture and Equipment (477,699) (20,387) 0 (498,086)
Total accumulated depreciation $ (477,699) (20,387) $ 0 s (498,086)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 48,991  (20,387) $ 0$ 28,604
Business-type activities capital assets, net: $ 48,991  (20,387) $ 03 28,604
Total Governmental and Business-type activities,net  $ 12,169,899 $ 2,021,149 $ (1,013,480)$ 13,177,568

Depreciation expense was charged to functionseothool District as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Instruction:
Regular Instruction
Special Instruction
Vocational Instruction
Other Instructional Programs
Adult Education Programs
Support Services:
Pupil Personnel
Instructional Staff
Administration
Pupil Health
Business Services
Operation of Plant and Maintenance Services
Student Transportation Services
Central
Other Support Services
Non-Instructional Services:
Student Activities
Community Services
Unallocated Depreciation Expense**

Total Depreciation expense, Governmental Activities:

Business-type Activities:
Food Services

Total Depreciation expense, Business-type Activities:
Total Depreciation expense, Governmental and Business-type Activities:

**Unallocated Depreciation Expense represents assets or portions
of assets that are not able to be identified with any particular function
(eg: building hallways, certain computer labs, etc.)
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174,566
5,976
26,513

2,549
25,547
14,271

2,852

2,570

21,477

453,391

738

20,387

20



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 6 - RISK MANAGEMENT

New Brighton Area School District is a member distto the Beaver County School Health Care
Insurance Consortium (the Consortium) which wasfat on July 1, 2003. The Consortium is a
cooperative joint venture to provide hospitalizationedical and surgical services, professional
services, and drug benefits to its member distioctsa pooled risk basis. New Brighton Area
School District pays an annual premium to the Cdnsu for its health and medical insurance
coverage, and this rate is adjusted annually baseounts required to fund anticipated begefit
and claims as well as other administrative costs.

The formation agreement of the Consortium provitteg the Consortium will be self-sustaining
through annually determined member premiums anldr@ifisure through commercial companies
for excess claims of amounts as defined in theramme contract. The agreement permits
participating districts to withdraw from the Cortam. If New Brighton Area School District
would withdraw, the Articles of Agreement statetttiee School District would be entitled to their
respective share of the Consortium’s net position. This is calculated by multiplyingt pesition
by the fraction of dividing the withdrawing member’s total contributions over the last three years
by the total of the all member district contribuigoover that same time period. The distribution
would be required to be paid within one year ofdhate of withdrawal.

The following chart illustrates the published Camison net position as well as New Brighton Area
School District’s Annual Contributions over the past five years.

Fiscal Year Total Consortium | New Brighton Area Schog Total Consortium

Ended June 30, | Net Assets* District Annual Contributions* | Contributions*
2015 $4,242,114 $2,090,122 $31,592,352
2014 $4,569,005 $2,077,727 $32,278,282
2013 $4,848,700 $2,209,114 $33,329,717
2012 $3,839,671 $2,115,539 $34,117,003
2011 $3,568,209 $2,007,943 $33,917,551

* Net assets are recorded on the full accrual basis of accounting. The Consortium’s financial
statements are on file with the New Brighton Aread®l| District.

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN / OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS)
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan DescriptionThe Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) is a governmental
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit penspdan that provides retirement benefits to
public school employees of the Commonwealth of Bgrania. The members eligible to
participate in the System include all full-time fiakschool employees, part-time hourly public
school employees who render at least 500 hourgrefce in the school year, and part-time per
diem public school employees who render at leaste8§@ of service in the school year in any of

29



NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN /OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED

the reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERSessupublicly available financial report that can
be obtained at www.psers.state.pa.us.

Benefits Provided: PSERS provides retirement and disability, and déathefits. Members are
eligible for monthly retirement benefits upon reiagh(a) age 62 with at least 1 year credited
service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of ceetlgervice; or (c) 35 or more years of service
regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120) preethe benefits of existing members and
introduced benefit reductions for individuals whecbme new members on or after July 1, 2011.
Act 120 created two new membership classes; Memipe@®hss T-E (Class T-E) and Members
Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal retirent, Class T-E and Class T-F members must
work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 years of seevor attain a total combination of age and
service that is equal to or greater than 92 withimmum of 35 years of service. Benefits are
generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the member’s final average
salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited service, a member’s
right to the defined benefits is vested and ealiyament benefits may be elected. For Clags T-
and Class T-F members, the right to benefits itedesfter ten years of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retiremdygnefits after completion of five years of credite
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2258, depending upon membership class, of
the member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the nembf years of
credited service, but not less than one-third afthssalary nor greater than the benefit the
members would have had at normal retirement agembées over normal retirement age may
apply for disability benefits.

Death benefits are payable upon the death of areatiember who has reached age 62 with at least
one year of credited service (age 65 with at [dase years of credited service for Class T-E and
Class T-F members) or who has at least five ydargedited service (ten years for Class T-E and
Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuasgllyvalent to the benefit that would have been
effective if the member had retired on the day ketteath.

Contributions

Member Contributions:Active members who joined the System prior to A2y 1983, contribute at
5.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 6.50% (Membersbiass T-D) of the qualifying
compensation.

Members who joined the System on or after July 2331and who were active or inactive as of July
1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class BiCat 7.50% (Membership Class T-D) of
the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 200t béfore July 1, 2011, contribute at 7.50%
(automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new haed for members who elected Class T-D
membership, the higher contribution rates begah waérvice rendered on or after January 1,
2002.
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Members who joined the System after June 30, 20dtbnaatically contribute at the Membership
Class T-E rate of 7.50% (base rate) of the mefs qualifying compensation. All new hires after
June 30, 2011, who elect Class T-F membership,riboté at 10.30% (base rate) of the
menber’s qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a
“shared risk” provision in Act 120 of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership
Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate betwees0% and 9.50% and Membership Clasg T-
contribution rate to fluctuate between 10.30% a230%.

Employer Contributions:

The School District’s contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2015 was 21.40% of covered
payroll, actuarially determined as an amount thien combined with employee contributions,
is expected to finance the costs of benefits eatmedmployees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accriggdaility. Contributions to the pension plan
from the School District were $2,012,183 for tharyended June 30, 2015.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Defe@etlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 302015 the School District reported a liability of $293000 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liapilvas measured as of June 20,14 and the
total pension liability used to calculate the netigion liability was determined by rolling forward
the System’s total pension liability as of June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014 The School Disict’s
proportion of the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported
covered payroll as it related to the total one-yeported covered payroll. At June 2014 the
School District’s proportion was 0.0733%, which was an increase of 0.0013% fitam
proportion measured as of June 32013

For the year ended June 215 the School District recognized pension expensk2¢644,000. At

June 302015 the School District reported deferred outflows@gources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the folloveogrces:
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Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflow
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 0 $ (
Changes in assumptions 0 (
Net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings 0 2,074,00
Changes in proportions 429,000 0

Difference between employer
contributions and proportionate share

of total contributions 0 (
District contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 2,012,184 0
Total $ 2,441,184 $ 2,074,000

The School District reported $2,441,184 as defewatflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from School District contributions subgeqt to the measurement date and will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension iigbit the year ended June 3BQ15 Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resouandsdeferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expensésllasvs:

Year ended June 30:

2016 $ (415,000
2017 (415,000
2018 (415,000
2019 16,000

Actuarial assumptions:The total pension liability as of June 314 was determined by rolling
forward the System’s total pension liability as of the June 30, 2013actuarial valuation to June 30,
2014 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied all periods included in the

measurement:
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal- level % of pay
Inflation 3.00 %
Salary Increases Effective average of 5.50%

(Reflects allowance for inflation, real wage
growth of 1.00%, and merit or seniority
increases of 1.50%)

Investment Rate of Return | 7.50 % including inflation

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2000 Combinealtihie Annuitant Tables (male and female)
with age set back 3 years for both males and femdbésabled annuitants rates were based on
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the RP2000 Combined Disabled Tables (male and female) withsajeback 7 years for males
and 3 years for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June28@3 valuation were based on the experience study
that was performed for the 5-year period endingeJ83® 2010. The recommended assumption
changes based on this experience study were adbptde Board at its March 11, 2011 Board
meeting and were effective beginning with the J8@e2011 actuarial valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pensian plvestments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expefutre real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expenserdiadion) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce nigetdom expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by thgetaasset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be
amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed Wwaithig-term objective of achieving and
maintaining a fully funded status for the bengpitsvided through the pension.

Long-Term

Target Expected Re

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Returi

Public markets global equ 19% 5.0%
Private markets (equity) 21% 6.5%
Private real estate 13% 4.7%
Global fixed income 8% 2.0%
U.S. long treasuries 3% 1.4%
TIPS 12% 1.2%
High yield bonds 6% 1.7%
Cash 3% 0.99
Absolute return 10% 4.8
Risk parity 5% 3.9%
MLPs/Infrastructure 3% 5.3¢
Commodities 6% 3.39
Financing (LIBOR) -9% 1.19

100%

The above was the Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates
of return for each major asset class as of Jun2@®

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measwgetdtal pension liability was 7.50%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine thealist rate assumed that contributions from
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plan members will be made at the current contrifutate and that contributions from employers
will be made at contractually required rates, atallg determined. Based on those assumptions,
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan membersierd@fore, the long-term expected rate of
return on pension plan investments was appliedltpesiods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District’s proportionate share of the Net Pension Liabilitythe following
presents the School District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50%as well as what the School District’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculateding a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5@8@) the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1 % Increa
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%

School District's proportionate
share of net pension liability $ 36,189,000 $ 29,013,000 $ 22,886,000

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:Detailed information about the PBE’ fiduciary net position is
available in PSERS Comprehensive Annual FinancighdR, which can be found on the
System’s website at www.psers.state.pa.us.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Post-Employment Benefits

From an accrual accounting perspective, the cogtosf-employment healthcare benefits, like the
cost of pension benefits, generally should be @atutwith the periods in which the cost occurs,
rather than in the future year when it will be pald adopting the requirements of GASB No, 45
the School District recognizes the cost of postdegmpent healthcare in the year when the
employee services are received, reports the aceteauliability from prior years, and provides
information useful in assessing potential demamdthe SchooDistrict’s future cash flows.

Plan Description

The School District provides post-retirement besefior certain employees for current and future
health, dental, and vision benefit expenses thr@ugingle-employer defined benefit plan.triA
annual actuarial valuation is made to determinethethe contributions are sufficient to meet
the plan obligations. The latest actuarial vabrativas made July 1,024 The post-retirement
plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports.
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The contribution requirements of plan members &edSchool District are established and may be
amended by the School District. The School Disttetermines the required contribution using

the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Membership in the plan consisted of the followingJaty 1, 2014, the date of the last actuarial

valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefitd5
Active plan members 141
Total 156

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

For the year ended June 30, 2015,Stl@ol District’s annual OPEB cost for the Plan was $69,842
The School District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for the year drnlme 30, 2015, were as follows:

Annual Required Contribution $ 831
Interest on Net OPEB Obiligation 7,7¢
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (21C
Annual OPEB Cost $ 6984
Estimated Contributions Made (48,21
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation $ 215
Net OPEB Obligation - June 30, 2014 258,¢

Net OPEB Obiligation - June 30, 2015 $ 280,

Trend Information

The SchooDistrict’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligations were as follows:

GASBA45 Schedule of Employer Contributions ($000's)
Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPE
Fiscal Year Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30,2015 $ 70 69.1% % 280
June 30,2014 $ 80 92.0% % 259
June 30,2013 $ 80 92.0% $ 252
June 30, 2012 $ 80 92.0% $ 246
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Funding Status and Funding Progress

The SchoolDistrict’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is cated|
based on the annual required contribution of thepleyer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of EB58&tement 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing bagsprojected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or dimg excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The actuarial accrued liability as of JB0Ge 2014 is estimated to be $646,629. The
SchoolDistrict’s contributions represent payments made for premiums for insured individuals.

Schedule of Funding Progress ($000's)
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funde
Date Assets Liability AAL Ratio

7/1/2014 $ 0% 647 $ 647 0%
7/1/2011 $ 0$ 774 $ 774 0%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involveimsttes of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrencevaints far into the future. Examples included
assumptions about future employment, mortality, aimel healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the atahthe annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as dcrmults are compared with past expectations
and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting pases are based on the substantive plan (the plan a
understood by the employer and plan members) ahddia the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattdralmring of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial agthand assumptions used included
techniques that are designed to reduce the eftdcshort-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, tstest with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The annual OPEB cost was determined as part cdidhigrial valuation. Additional information as
of the last actuarial valuations follows
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Valuation Date:
Actuarial Cost Method:
Asset Valuation Method:

July 1, 2014

Market Value

Amortization Method: Closed
Amortization Period: 15 years
Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return  3.00%

Health Cost Trend Rates

Projected Unit Credit Method

Medical and pharmacy costs and premium rates are ad

to increase as shown in the following table (selegézals shown)

Increase in Medical Cost
over Prior Year

Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Increase in Dental Cost
over Prior Year

2015-2016 10.00% 5.00%
2017-2018 9.00% 5.00%
2019-2020 8.00% 5.00%
2021-2022 7.00% 5.00%
2023-2024 6.00% 5.00%
2025 and after 5.00% 5.00%
NOTE 8- LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term liability for the year ended June 30, 2@ as follows:
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds Payable:
General obligation bonds/notes ~ $ 8,380,000 0% (1,345,000% 7,035,000 $ 1,380,00(
Other extended term financing 2,604,372 0 (6,224) 2,598,148 108,807
Deferred amounts for issuance
premium/(discount) 72,080 (14,054) 0 58,026 0
Total bonds and notes payable, net $ 11,056,4%2 (14,054)$ (1,351,224% 9,691,174 % 1,488,807
Net pension liability 0 29,013,000 0 29,013,000 2,012,184
Compensated absences-incentive 172,900 3,200 0 176,100 0
Other Post Emp Benefit
Obligation payable 569,686 0 (100,995) 468,691 126,118
Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities $  11,799,038% 29,002,146 $ (1,452,219) $ 39,348,965 $ 3,627,109

Payments on general obligation bonds are madeebgémeral Fund.

Total interest and debt fees incurred of $302,7@rewcharged to expense; no interest costs were

capitalized during the period.
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The annual requirements to amortize all generabatibn bonds and notes outstanding as of June
30, 2015, including interest payments, are as¥dlo

Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 1,380,000 $ 161,075 $  1,541,07¢
2017 1,415,000 126,265 1,541,26¢
2018 1,425,000 95,728 1,520,72¢
2019 1,460,000 59,995 1,519,99¢
2020 1,355,000 20,325 1,375,325

Total $ 7,035,000 $ 463,388 $ 7,498,388

General Obligation Bonds and Note§&eneral obligation bonds and notes payable at 30n2015
with their outstanding balances are as follows:

$8,895,000 2011 General Obligation Bonds, due in annual installments
of $220,000 to $1,205,000, beginning September 15, 2011, through
August 15, 2019, interest from 2.7 to 6.0% $ 6,160,000

$1,100,000 2011 General Obligation Bond A, due in annual installments

of $75,000 to $150,000, beginning February 15, 2012, through August 15,

2019, interest from 2.7% to 6.0%. 875,000
Total $ 7,035,000

On March 6, 2014, the School District entered intdaster Equipment éasePurchasedgreement
for $2,604,372. The proceeds will be used forowsicapital improvements, which will help
reduce utility costs in future years.

The annual requirements to amortize all generabatibn bonds and notes outstanding as of June
30, 2015, including interest payments are as falow

Year ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 108,807 $ 71,509 $ 180,31¢
2017 125,743 74,435 200,17¢
2018 133,431 70,479 203,91
2019 142,080 66,282 208,362
2020 150,751 61,805 212,55¢
2021-2025 863,171 233,659 1,096,83(
2026-2030 1,074,165 81,164 1,155,329

Total $ 2,598,148 $ 659,333 $ 3,257,481
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NOTE 9- INTERFUND BALANCES
Interfund balances at June 30, 2015, consisteleofailowing fund receivables and payables:

Receivables Payables

General Fund: Food Service Fund  $ 3,718 $ 0
Food Service Fund: General Fund 0 3,718
Totals $ 3,718 $ 3,718

The balances resulted from a time lag between #tesdhat (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2hdactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) payments between funds are madlehédbalances above are expected to be
collected in the subsequent year.

During the fiscal year, the general fund made feasgo the food service fund of $45,635.
NOTE 10 - CONTINGENCIES
A. Litigation

The School District is potentially liable for anypeenditure that may be disallowed pursuant to the
terms of grant programs. Management is not awarangfmaterial items of noncompliance,
which would result in the disallowance of prograxpenditures.

B. Grants

The School District received financial assistanmoenffederal and state agencies in the form of grant
The expenditure of funds received under these pmgrgenerally requires compliance with
terms and conditions specified in the grant agregsnand are subject to audit by the grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting fromhs@audits could become a liability of the
general fund or other applicable funds. Howeverthe opinion of management, any such
disallowed claims will not have a material advezffect on the overall financial position of the
School District at June 30, 2015.

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The School District evaluated its June 30, 201arfaial statements for subsequent events through
December 18, 2015, the date the financial statesngate available to be issued. The School
District is not aware of any subsequent eventswatid require recognition or disclosure in the
financial statements.

NOTE 12 - FUTURE GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72; Walue Measurement and Application. The

primary objectives of this Statement are to addsssgs regarding the measurement of fair value and
the applicability of fair value guidance. ThistBtaent will be effective for fiscal year 2025416.
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In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Acomyi@ind Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets that are not Within the Scope ofEs8ftement 68, and Amendments to Certain
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The pyirobjectives of this Statement are to establish
requirements for pensions and pension plans noinédened through trusts and to amend certain
provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. ThiseBtant will be effective for fiscal year 2016-
2017.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, FiadRaporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans
Other Than Pension Plans. The primary objectiVdsiStatement are to address the financial
reports of defined benefit OPEB plans administéneolugh a trust and to address certain disclosure
requirements for such plans. This Statement wilttbective for fiscal year 2018317,

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Acemyaind Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objeabf/this Statement is to address the reporting
requirements for OPEB liabilities and the relatéstldsure requirements. This Statement will be
effective for fiscal year 2012018.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, Theakiby of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments. Tlmany objectives of this Statement are to reduce
the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoktatGAAP, to provide implementation guidance,
and to address the use of authoritative and ndwatative literature. This Statement will be
effective for fiscal year 2018016.

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Teatdment Disclosures. This Statement defines tax
abatements and provides disclosure guidance fargments that have granted tax abatements. This
Statement will be effective for fiscal year 202@17.

The effects of implementing GASB Statements No.thf@ugh 77 on the Schodistrict’s financial
statements have not yet been determined.

NOTE 13- PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Schodfi®@ismplemented GASB No. 67 Financial
Reporting for Pension Plans and GASB No. 68 Acdogntand Financial Reporting for
Pensions. Reporting under the above GASB standards, whictuires| new reporting
requirements for state and local governments tiwtige their employees with pension benefits,
was not reflected in the Governmental ActivitiesisBiess-Type Activities or Food Service Fund
for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Also, during the year ended June 30, 2015, the @dbistrict received a new fixed assets valuation.
This adjustment was made because the fixed adstits 8chool District were re-appraised as of
June 30, 2014 using estimates by an appraiserghrcomputerized reverse-trending techniques
applied against the estimate of current replacermastt The School District has also elected not
to prorate portions of buildings utilized by thdeataria to the Business-Type Activities as of
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 13- PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2014. All buildings are capitalized anduded as a Governmental Activity on the
Statement of Net Position.

Net positions at July 1, 2014 have been restateddode implementation of GASB No. 67 and 68
and a new fixed asset valuation as follows:

Business-Type

Governmental Activities
Activities (Proprietary Fund) Total

Net Position at June 30, 2014 $ 9,760,301 (122,261)% 9,638,04-
Change in Accounting Estimate:

(Less)/Add: Fixed Asset Valuation Adjustment (3,521)377 24,354 (3,497,023
Change in Accounting Principle:

(Less): Net Pension Liability (28,014,000) 0 (28,014,000
Total Prior Period Adjustments $ (31,535,37%) 24,354 $ (31,511,023
Restated Net Position at July 1, 2014 $ (21,775,082) (97,907) $ (21,872,979
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITSOTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS (OPEBYS)
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
The schedule below reports the funding progresserbgdhe School District.

Schedule of Funding Progress ($000's)
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funde
Date Assets Liabiity = AAL Ratio
7/1/2014 $ 0% 647 $ 647 0%
7/1/2011 $ 0S$ 774 $ 774 0%
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITSOTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS (OPEBYS)
FACTORSAND TRENDSUSED IN ACTUARIAL VALUATION

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
The information presented in the required suppleargrschedules was determined as part of the

actuarial valuations at the School District. Tloéuarial methods and assumptions stated below
are from the last actuarial valuation report.

Valuation Date: July 1, 2014

Actuarial Cost Method: Projected Unit Credit Method
Asset Valuation Method: Market Value

Amortization Method: Closed

Amortization Period: 15 years

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment rate of return  3.00%
Health Cost Trend Rates Medical and pharmacy costs and premium rates are ag
to increase as shown in the following table (selegézals shown)

Increase in Medical Cost Increase in Dental Cost
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 over Prior Year over Prior Year
2015-2016 10.00% 5.00%
2017-2018 9.00% 5.00%
2019-2020 8.00% 5.00%
2021-2022 7.00% 5.00%
2023-2024 6.00% 5.00%
2025 and after 5.00% 5.00%
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
OF THE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS)

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
The schedule below reports the School District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability.

The Public School Employees’ Retirement System
Last 10 Fiscal Years (As of years ended 6/30)

2015

District's Proportion of the

Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.0733%
District's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 29,013,0(
District's Covered-Employee Payroll $ 9,352,2
District's Proportionate Share of the

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a

Percentage of its Covered-Employee

Payroll 310.22%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 57.24%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year arendigied as of the calendar year-end that occurred
within the fiscal year. This schedule is presentedillustrate the requirement to disclose
information for 10 years; however, until a full ¥@ar trend is compiled, governments are
required to present information for those years forcl information is available.
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S CONTRIBUTIONS
TO THE PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSERS)

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015

The schedule below reports the School District’s annual contributions to the Public School
Employees’ Retirement System as of the June 30 year end.
2015
Contractually Required Contribution $ 2,012,183
Contributions in Relation to
Contractually Required Contribution (2,012,183

Contribution Deticiency (Excess) $ 0

District's Covered Employee Payroll $ 9,706,972
Contribution as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll 20.7:

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requént to disclose information for 10 years; howgver

until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governmeats required to present information for those
years for which information is available.
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015
NOTE 1- CHANGES OF BENEFIT TERMSASSUMPTIONS
Changes of Benefit Terms
There were no changes of benefit terms for the grded June 30, 2015.
Changes of Benefit Assumptions

There were no changes of benefit assumptions &ydar ended June 30, 2015.
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SINGLE AUDIT SUPPLEMENTARY REPORTS
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT

LIST OF REPORT DISTRIBUTION

1 copy Bureau of Audits
Special Audit Services Division
Forum Place- 9th Floor
555 Walnut Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101
Online Submission

1 copy Federal Audit Clearinghouse
Bureau of Census
Online Submission
Included Data Collection Form

1 copy Beaver County Court House
Prothonotary
810 Third Street
Beaver, PA 15009

25 copies New Brighton Area School District
3225 43! Street
New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

1 copy Cottrill, Arbutina & Associates, P.C.

525 Third Street
Beaver, PA 15009
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Federal Grantor/Project Title
U.S. Department of Education
Passed through the PA Department
of Education:
Title | Improving Basic Programs
Title | Improving Basic Programs
Program Impro-Set Aside

Total Title | Cluster

Title Il Improving Teacher Quality

Title Il Improving Teacher Quality
Total Title Il Cluster

Total PA Department of Education

Passed through the Beaver Valley Intermediate Unit #27
Unit:

IDEA

IDEA

IDEA-ESY

IDEA-619B

IDEA-619B

Total IDEA Cluster
Race to the Top

Total Beaver Valley Intermediate Unit #27
Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through the PA Department
of Education:
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
Child and Adult Care Food Program
National School Severe Need Breakfast Program
National School Severe Need Breakfast Program
Passed through the PA Department
of Agriculture:
Value of USDA Donated Commodities:
Total Child Nutrition Cluster
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

Total Federal Assistance

Federal

Source CFDA
Code Number

84.010
84.010
84.010

84.367
84.367

84.027
84.027
84.027
84.173
84.173

84.413A

10.555
10.555
10.558
| 10.553
| 10.553

10.555

NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Pass Accrued Accrued
Through Program Total (Deferred) (Deferred)
Grantor's Grant Period or Award Received Revenue Revenue Revent
Number From - To Amount For Year @ 7/1/14 Recognized Expenditures @ 6/30/15
013-150279 07/01/14-09/30/15 $ 411856 247,532 % 0 $ 342,596 $ 342,596 * $ 95,064
013-140279 07/01/13-09/30/15 432,747 230,227 35,700 194,527 194,527 * 0
042-130279 04/26/13-09/30/14 50,403 2,800 (4,121) 6,921 6,921 * 0
$ 480,559 $ 31,579 $ 544,044 $ 544,044 $ 95,064
020-150279 07/01/14-09/30/15 $ 112,39 112359 $ 0 $ 112,359% 112,359 $ 0
020-140279 07/01/13-09/30/14 112,411 7,443 7,443 0 0 0
$ 119,802 $ 7,443 $ 112,359 $ 112,359 $ 0
$ 600,361 $ 39,022 $ 656,403 $ 656,403 $ 95,064
N/A 07/01/13-06/30/14 $ 209,576% 76,895 $ 76,895 $ 0s 0 $ 0
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 197,016 71,662 0 197,016 197,016 125,354
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 725 725 0 725 725 0
N/A 07/01/13-06/30/14 2,183 2,183 2,183 0 0 0
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 4,465 0 0 4,465 4,465 4,465
$ 151,465 $ 79,078 $ 202,206 $ 202,206 $ 129,819
N/A 07/01/12-06/30/13 $  29,829.00% 27,133  $ 0 $ 27,133 $ 27,133 $ 0
$ 178,598 $ 79,078 $ 229,339 $ 229,339 $ 129,819
$ 778,959 $ 118,100 $ 885,742 $ 885,742 $ 224,883
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A $ 341,596 $ 0 $ 347,545% 347545 * $ 5,949
N/A 07/01/13-06/30/14 N/A 47,470 47,470 0 0 * 0
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 8,727 0 11,344 11,344 * 2,617
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 111,804 0 113,776 113,776 * 1,972
N/A 07/01/13-06/30/14 N/A 14,971 14,971 0 0 * 0
N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 47,369 a 0b 47,369 47,369 *c 0d
$ 571,937 $ 62,441 $ 520,034 $ 520,034 $ 10,538
$ 571,937 $ 62,441 $ 520,034 $ 520,034 $ 10,538
$ 1,350,896 $ 180,541 $ 1,405,776 $ 1,405,776 $ 235421

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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Source Codes:
I=Indirect Funding
F=Federal Share
S=State Share

Test of 50% rule:
Title | Cluster

Cafeteria Cluster
Total Federal Expenditures Tested

Total Federal Expenditures

NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Footnotes:
a) Total amount of commodities received from Department
of Agriculture
b) Beginning inventory at July 1
¢) Total amount of commodities used
d) Ending inventory at June 30
* Selected for testing

$ 544,044
520,034
$ 1064078
$ 1,405,776 75.69% (High risk auditee 50% required)

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTESTO THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTE 1- BASISOF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fedevards includes the federal grant activity of
the New Brighton Area School District and is prdedron the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in acancg with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and {Roofit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ fraamounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 - BUDGETARY DATA

The School District passed and had approved bwpipeopriate agency budgets for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015 for all federal programs.
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Beaver

Pittsburgh
. s Peters Township
@ Cottrill Arbutina
Certified Public Accountants www.cottrillarbutina.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

New Brighton Area School District
3225 43 Street

New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

We have audited, in accordance with the auditingdsteds generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financiadita contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General ofuhiéed States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type aotisjtieach major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of New Brighton Area School Distrias of and for the year ended June 30, 2015
and the related notes to the financial statemewitéch collectively comprise New Brighton Area
School District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 18
2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finai@tatements, we considered New Brighton Area
School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumssafweehe purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose gfressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Brighton AreaSchool District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectivenas of New Brighton Area School District’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for thmited purpose described in the preceding

paragraph and was not designed to identify allctlicies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and thegefiaaterial weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. However, ascdbsd in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs, we identified a deficienciniernal control that we consider to be a material
weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the dasbr operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course rédmpgng their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timelysbAsmaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal controlckuthat there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basi. significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a conddinon of deficiencies,

in internal control that is less severe than a reteeakness, yet important enough to merit atiant
by those charged with governance. We consider i¢h%2 described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs to be a matemakmness
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Brighton Area School District’s
financial statements are free from material misstant, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contraet®l grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on therddtetion of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those psiafis was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.rékalts of our tests did not disclose instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are requirecbgoreported under Government Auditing
Standards.

New Brighton Area School District’s Response to Findings

New Brighton Are School District’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in

the accompanying schedule of findings and quediawests. New Brighton Are&chool District’s
response was not subjected to the auditing proesdapplied in the audit of the financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of thisReport

The purpose of this report is solely to describe scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, andtmgrovide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standatdsonsidering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is saitable for any other purpose.

Qottelll, flototine and Heosoc.

Beaver, PA 15009
December 18, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors

New Brighton Area School District
3225 43 Street

New Brighton, Pennsylvania 15066

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Brighton Area School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133rpbance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Brighton Area School District’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 201Bew Brighton Area School District’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of finsliagd
guestioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with tiq@irements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cbamge for each of New Brighton Area School
District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred

to above. We conducted our audit of compliance roatance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the statglapplicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the CanliptrGeneral of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenéand Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that wen @glad perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with thestghbeompliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect onagomfederal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about NewhBrig AreaSchool District’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other proesdas we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonableslfasiour opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not prexadegal determination of New Brighton Area
School District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New Brighton Area School Districgmplied, in all material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above thalddoave a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended 3n015.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of New Brighton Area School District @sponsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with thges of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of ctiamze, we considered New Brighton Area
SchoolDistrict’s internal control over compliance with the types ajuieements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federag@m to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposexgfessing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report oera control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of exgmiag an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we ot express an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Brighton Area Schodbistrict’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance éxisshen the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or ereplyin the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and chrmoncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely ba&isnaterial weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that mdtam@ancompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prégdnor detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over cpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over complianciéfwa type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakimesnternal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chasgith governane

Our consideration of internal control over comptiarwas for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not desigoddentify all deficiencies in internal conti@ber
compliance that might be material weaknesses mifignt deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over complianceatttwe consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that havbeen identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control os@mpliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance andrimsults of that testing based on the requirenants
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is neditable for any other purpose.

Ottt Hodwtina and Hovoc.

Beaver, PA 15009
December 18, 2015
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the New
Brighton Area School District.

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during thditiof the financial statemenis reported in
this schedule. This condition is reported as aentweakness.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to thenfoiel statements of the New Brighton Area
School District, which would be required to be rapdrin accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit

4. No significant deficieny in internal control over major federal award pargs wasdisclosed
during the audit.No conditions were reported as material weakegess

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the New
Brighton Area School District expresses an ungieaibpinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reportedagtordance with Section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133 are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs include:

Title | Cluster- CFDA 84.010
Cafeteria Cluster 10.553, 10.555 & 1058

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and Bgreans was $300,000.

9. New Brighton Area School District was determinedeé a high-risk auditee.
B. FINDINGS- FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDIT
Material Weaknesses
2015-1 Limited Staff

Condition: The School District has a limited staff responsibleor access to:

a. receipts d. fixed asset records
b. check writing e. inventory records
c. posting to the general ledger f. payroll records

Because of limited staff, we realize segregatiothefabove duties is not practical, if not impoksib
Because of this internal control situation, thepoesibility of the Business Manager is greatly
increased because the Board must rely @rkhowledge of the everyday operations to discovgr a
material changes in the Schawiktrict’s financial position.
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
20151 Limited Staff - Continued
Criteria: The small size of the Schoblistrict’s office staff limits the extent of separation of duties.
The basic premise in an ideal accounting officthi& no one employee should have access to both
physical assets and the related accounting recorisall phases of a transaction. Some examples o
lack of segregation of duties at the School Disaiie as follows:

General Fund Payroll: One employee enters all gilayinformation, including pay rate
information, prints checks/direct deposit advaneas], distributes ché&s.

General Fund and Activity Fund: One individualates disbursements, records disbursements,
and mails disbursements.

Effect: A lack in separation of duties makes the Schoalridtamore susceptible to nagpropriation
of School District assets.

Significant Deficiencies
None.
C. FINDINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS- MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD AUDIT

None.
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
A. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDIT
Material Weaknesses
20141 Limited Staff

Condition: The School District has a limited staff responsfoleor access to:

a. check writing c. fixed asset records
b. posting to the general ledger d. inventory records

Because of limited staff, we realize segregatiothefabove duties is not practical, if not impoksib
Because of this internal control situation, thepoesibility of the Business Manager is greatly
increased because the Board must rely on her kdgelef the everyday operations to discover any
material changes in the School District’s financial position.

Criteria: The small size of the School Distfks office staff limits the extent of separation of duties.

The basic premise in an ideal accounting officthi& no one employee should have access to both
physical assets and the related accounting recordsall phases of a transaction. Some examples o
lack of segregation of duties at the School Distaiie as follows:

General Fund Payroll: One employee enters all gilaynformation, including pay rate
information, prints checks/direct deposit advanees|, distributes checks.

Activity Fund: One individual creates disbursensentecords disbursements, and mails
disbursements.

Fixed Assets: The individual who records and tadis the subsidiary ledger for fixed assets
also has access to general ledger, cash, purchasipgble and capital expenditure authorizing
functions. In addition, this individual also islalbo make deletions to the fixed assets and is the
only individual who reconciles the fixed assets.

Current Status:This finding continues at the School District, limprovements were made during
the June 30, 2015 fiscal year.

20142 Fixed Assets

Condition: It was difficult to determine the physical preserafeassets recorded in the School
District’s records because the system for determining the location of fixed assets is quite
cumbersome. Because the assets are not taggeakes it very difficult to determine if the proper
asset is being inspected. We also continue to thatethe School District still does not list fixed
assets in a central data base. Currently, thedb&istrict uses separate sets of ledgers to tiiaek
assets. As a result, the School District spenae tmanually calculating depreciation values,
manually adding fixed assets, and manually suligctid assets from the ledgers each time a fixed
asset report is prepared. We also continue tothateproperty and equipment acquisitions were not
prepared for entry into the various computerize@di asset subsidiary ledgers until after year-end.
We also continue to note that management must comatarwith all School District employees
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

20142 Fixed Assets Continued

regarding acquisition, disposing of, and movingéixassets. This issue has still not been formally
addressed in the policy on fixed assets.

Criteria: The School District should begin tagging all assetsuired for inclusion in the master fixed
asset listing. We recommend the School District paterize all fixed assets in a central data base
designed for proper fixed asset tracking. By ddhig, the School District would greatly reduce the
time invested in fixed asset calculations and elate much of the possibility for human error. We
recommend that the Business Manager, at the timeaghmves purchase orders, indicate on the
purchase order which items should be added toixke Bsset subsidiary schedules. When invoices
are matched with purchase orders and receivingrigpihe accounts payable clerk should enter
property and equipment acquisitions into the suasidledger. Monthly comparisons of capital
expenditure guideline reports with fixed asset tolds will help ensure all capital expenditures are
entered into fixed asset detail records. The Sdbairict should also formally address all aspeifts
fixed asset reporting in their policies and progedumanual.

Current Status:This finding was corrected during the June 30, 29ddy since the School District
obtained a new fixed asset appraisal report.

20143 Service Organization Control Report

Condition: The School District was not able to obtain a Sernd@rganization Control Report from
the Beaver County School Health Care Insurance @tus..

Criteria: The American Institute of CPAs recently releasatww series of reporting options, called
SERVICE ORGANIZATION CONTROL REPORTS (SOC), that enables CPAs to provide
assurance on internal controls over subject maitieer than financial reporting while filling the
marketplace’s need to demonstrate reliability and mitigation of risk. We recommend that the Beaver
County School Health Care Insurance Consortium Idhbave the necessary procedures performed
over their internal controls in order to obtain@Greport.

Current Status:This finding was corrected during the June 30, 20d4&r since the School District
obtained an unqualified audit of the Beaver Co@tkool Health Care Insurance Consortium.

Significant Deficiencies

None.
B. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS- MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD AUDIT

None.
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NEW BRIGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

JUNE 30, 2015

Pennsylvania Department of Education

The New Brighton Area School District respectfudlybmits the following corrective action plan for
the year ended June 30, 2015.

Name and address of independent public accouritimg f
Cottrill, Arbutina & Associates, P.C.
525 Third Street
Beaver, PA 15009
Audit Period:  July 12014through June 30, 2015
A. FINDINGS- FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDIT
2015-1 Limited Staff
RecommendationThe small size of the SchobDlistrict’s office staff limits the extent of separation
of duties. The basic premise in an ideal accogrtffice is that no one employee should have access

to both physical assets and the related accountiogrds or to all phases of a transaction. Some
examples of lack of segregation of duties at tHeo8kDistrict are as follows:

General Fund Payroll: One employee enters all playrdormation, including pay rate
information, prints checks/direct deposit advanees, distributes checks.

General Fund and Activity Fund: One individualates disbursements, records disbursements,
and mails disbursements.

Action Taken: The School District believes that the completeregation of the Business Office
duties is not practical, if not impossible. Howewhe School District will continue to explore and
implement new procedures to alleviate some of ¢meerns listed.

B. FINDINGSAND QUESTIONED COSTS- MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD AUDIT

None.

If the Pennsylvania Department of Education hasstijes regarding this plan, please call

Marydenise Feroce, Business Manager of the New Briglrea School District, at 72843-1795
ext. 404.
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